IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF IDAHO, NORTHERN DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
Plaintiff, ;

; Civil Actién No. [ ]

" ; CONSENT DECREE
EAST SHOSHONE COUNTY ; o
WATER DISTRICT, )
Defendant. . ;
)
CONSENT DECREE

WHEREAS, Plaintiff United St;ates of America, on behalf of t‘he Qnitcd States

' Environmcntai Protection Agency (“EPA™), .ﬁled a Complaint concurrently with tﬁis Consent
Decree alleging that Defendant East Shoshone County Water District (“Defendant” or
“ESCWD?”), violated Section 1414 of the Safe Drinking Water Act (“SDWA” or “the Act”), 42
U.S.C. § 300g-3, at the ESCWD - _Buﬂce Pl.;blic Water System (“PWS” or “System;') owned
and/or operated by ESCWD in Shoshone County, Idaho.

. _ WHEREAS, the United States alleges that ESCWD failed to comply witﬂ the

requirements of an Administrative Compliance Order (“ACQ”) issued by EPA on March 28,
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2000, and amended on November 21, 2001, pursuant to Section 1414(g)(1) of the Act, 42 U.S.C.
§ 300g-3(g)(1). Tﬁe ACO required ESCWD to perform corrective measures to protect the health
of consumers sewed by the System. ESCWD’s violations of the ACO are specified in the .
Complaint. ESCWD'’s violations include, but are not limited to, the Surface Water Treatment
Rule (“SWTR”).

WHEREAS, this Consent Decree does not constitute an admission of either any
facts or liability by ESCWD;

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed that settlement of the civil judicial claims
alleged in the Complaint is in the public interest and that entry of this Consent Decree without
further litigation is the most appropriate way to resolve this action.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED as follows:

I. JURISDICTION AND PARTIES BOUND

1. This Court has jurisdiction over this action under Sections 1414 and 1450 of the
“Act, 42 U.S.C. §8§ 300g-3 and 300j-9; and 28 U.S.C. §8§ 1331, 1345, and 1355. ESCWD
consents to and shall not challenge entry of this Consent Decree or this Court’s jurisdiction t6
enter, enforce, modify, or terminate this Consent Decree.

. 2. Venue is proper in the District of Idaho pursuant tp Sections 1414(b) of the Act,

42 U.S.C. §§ 300g-3(b) and 300i(b), and 28 U.S.C. I§§ 1391(b) and 1395(a), because the
violations alleged in the Complaint occurred in this district, ESCWD conducts business in this
district, and ESCWD is located in this district.

3. ESCWD owns and/or opei‘ates a public water supply system in Burke Canyon,
known as the “ESCWD - Burke Water System” that provides water to the public for human
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co'nsumptionl. The; PWS 1d # for the system is 1400016. The System is supplied by two surfécc
water sources, primarily Sawmill Creek wiﬁ Canyon Creek as a backup source. Water from
these creeks serves the ESCWD - Burke Water Sysicm, consisting of approximately 21 service:
-COnnegtions that regularly serve approxima-tely 45 residents per day.

4. This Consent Decree shall apply to and- be bindiﬂg ﬁpon ESCWD and any
SuCCessor, ﬁember, officer, director, employee, and agent acting on behalf of ESCWD, and on
the I;qutcd States. |

5. ESCW D shall provide a copy of this Consent Decree to all members, officers,
directors,- employees; and agents whose duties might reasonably. include compliance with any
provision of this Consent Decree, as well as to any person or entity retained to perform work
required under this Consent Decree. ESCWD shall ensure that any conlréct entered into to .
perform work required under this Consent Decree conforms with its terms and conditions.

6. In any action to enférce this Consent becree, ESCWD shall not raise as a defense
the failure by any of its members, officers, directors, einployées, agehts, or contractors to take
any actions necessary to combly with the provisions of this Consent Decree.

7. °  Any transfer of ownership or operation of the Systerﬁ to any other person or entity
must be conditioned upon a written ag;eemént between ESCWD and the proposed transferee t§
undertake the obligations required by this Consent Dec.ree., cnfo;ceable'by the United States as
third-party beneficiary of such agreement. ESCWD shall give notice of this Consent Dccreé to
any proposed transferee or subsequent operator prior to such transfer. ESCWb shall provide a
copy of such notice together with a copy of the proposed written agreement to those persons
identified in Section XI (Notification) prior to such transfer of ownership or operational
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respori‘éibilitics. Any attempt to tranﬁfcr pwnership or ppération of the System without
complying with this Paragfaph constitutes a violation of this Consent De‘cfee. :

8. If ESCWD transfers or relinquishes its right or duty to operate tﬁe System duoring
the effective périod of this Consent Decree, the Consent Decree shall continu;s to be binding
upon ESCWD as owner of the System untiln the Consent Decree is terminated.

II. OBJECTIVE

9. | It is the express goal of the parties in entcﬁng into this Consént’ Decree to have
i:‘.SCWD achieve and maintain continuous, long-term comphance with the Act through its
operation of the ESCWD - Burke Public Water System. All obhgatlons under this Consent
Decree shall be interpreted in a2 manner consistent with this goal.

III. DEFINITIONS
- 10.  Terms used in this Consent Decree that are defined in the Act or in regulations
i)mmulgated pursuant to the Act shall have the meanings assigned té them in the Act or such
regulations, unless otherwise provided in this Cons'ent Decree. thnqvcr the terms set forth
below are used in this Consent Decree, the following definitions shall apply:

“Act” shall mean the Public ch;lth Service Act {also known as the ‘;Safe Drinking Water
Act” or “SDWA”), 42 US.C. §§ 300f et. seq. |

.' “Administrative Compliance Order” shall mean the EPA Administrative Complianc;:
Order, Docket. No. SDWA-10-2000-0067, issued to ESCWD on March 28, 2000, an& amended
on November 21, 2001;

“Complaint” shall mean the complaint filed by the United States in this action;

“Consent Decree” or “Decree” shall mean this Consent Decree;
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“Day” shall mean a calendar day unless exprels_sly stated to be a Qorﬁng day. In
computing any period of tirﬁe under this Consent Decree, where the last day would fall on a
Séturday, Sunday, or federal holiday, the period shall run until the cloée of business of the next
working day;

“DOJ” shall mean the United States Department of Justice and any successor
departments, agcnciés or instrumcntalities- of the United States;

“EPA" shall mean the Un,i-t'ed States Eﬁvironmental Protection Agency and any successor
departments or agencies of the United States;

“ESCWD” shall mean the East Shoshone County Water District;

-“NPDWR?” shall mean the National Primary Drinking Water Regulations, 40 C.F.R. Part

141;
“Pai-agraph’f shall mean a portion of this Consent Decree identified by an arabic nﬁmera]; :
“Parties” shall mean the United States an.d the East Shoshone County Water District;
“Section” shall mean a portion of this Consent Decfce identified by a roman numeral;
“System” shall mean the ESCWD - Burke Water System; and
“United States” shall mean the Plaintiff United States of America, acting on behalf of

EPA.

IV. CIVIL PENALTY
11.  In satisfaction of the United States’ civil claims specifically alleged in the
Complaint for ESCWD’s violations of the Act, NPDWRs, and ACO, as of the date of lodging
this Consent Decree, ESCWD shall pay to the United S‘tatcs a civil penalty of FIVE
| THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,000) within 30 days of' the entry of this Consent Decrec.r
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12.  The payment shall be made by Fed Wire Electronic Funds Transfer (“EFT”) in
' accordance with current electronic ﬁmds transfer procedures, referenéing DOJ Case No. 90-5-1-
1-08453. The payment shall be made in acéordance with instructions 'prévided to Defendant by
the Financial Litigation Unit of the Office of the United States Attorney for the District of Idaho.
Concu:rently with payment, ESCWD shall provide nqtice to those persons identified in Section
X1 (Noﬁﬁcaﬁon). .That notice shall reference the case name, the DOJ Case No. 90-5-1-1-08453.
V. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
13, ESCWD shall perform all compliance actions required under the ACO,
NPDWRs, and Act. In ad&ition'to all other applicable federal monitoring requirements, ESCWD
shall: |
a. Comply with the rou-tine and repeat total coliform monitoring réquiremcnts set
forth at 40 CF.R. § 141.21, and report analytical results to EPA within the first 10 days
following the month in which samble results are received; in accordance with 40 C.F.R. §
141.31(a).
b. Report any failure to comply with coliform monitoring requirements to EPA
within 10 days, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 141.21(g)(2).
c. Compl:y with the total coliform maximum contamjnaﬁt levels (“MCL") set forth at
40 C.F.R. § 141.63 and report any exceedance of the MCL to EPA, in accordancé with 40
C.FR. §§ 141.21(e) and 141.21(g)(1). If ESCWD experiences two additional MCL
violations within a continuous 12-month period while this Consent Decree is in effect,
but after implerhcntation of the system madifications sei forth in Sub-Paragraph g. 5elow,
ESCWDIshall submit to EPA within 30 days of the second MCL violation detailed plans _
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for determining the source of the bgcterio]o_gical contamination ahd» bringing the System
into compliance-with the MCL for coliform bacteria, in accordance with40 C.FR. §
141.63. The plans shall inc}ude proposed system modifications necessary to comply with |
the MCL, estinﬁated costs of modifications, a‘nd a schedule for construction of the project
and compliaﬁce with the MCL for coliform bacteria. The proposed.schedulevshall include
specific milestone dates, a final compliance date (thaf shall be within 120 dayé from the
second MCL violation) and shall be submitted to EPA for approval. The plans'must be
approved by EPA before construction can commence. | |

d. Provide public notice tb persons served by the System of violations of the
NPDWRs in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 141.201. Such notice shall contain all of the
information required by the NPDWRs. AES(.IWD shall submit a copy of the public notice -
to EPA within 10 days of ité cdmpletion, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 141.31(d) and
141.201."

€. Provide notice to the State of violations of the NPDWRs in accordance with 40
C.F.R. § 141.31. Such notice shall contain all of the information reqqired by the
NPDWRs. ESCWD shall Subfnit to EPA a copy of the notice to the State to within 10 -
days of its completion. -

f. Except where a different reporting period is specified above, report to EPA any
failure to comply with any NPDWR set forth at 40 C.F.R. Part 141 within 48 hours, in
accordance with 40 C.ER. § 141.31(b). |

g B)'r no later than December 31, 2009, construct and operate a public drinking

water disinfection and filtration system for the consumers in Burke Canyon. The new .
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system shall comply with the requirefne;lts of 40 C.F.R. Part 141, Subpart H. The -
schedule for this work includes, but is not limited to, providing distribution
improvements by no later than the summer of 2009, flow monitoring by no later than the
fall of 2009, and construction of disinfection and filtration facilities by no later than thé
spring .axlld .su_mmer of 2009 to meet a final construction cbmbletibn dafe of December 31,
2009. ESCWi) must pbtain all required federal, state, and county permits or approvals

: necés’sa?y to complete the water disinfection and filtration system, and must submit
timely applicationé ‘for such permits or approvals in order to n'leet the above deadlines.
h. By no later than December 31, 2009, complete a project estimated to cost
approximately $20,000 or more to modify the dli-scharge from an abandoned mine adit
near Sawmill Creek. The adit is ideqtiﬁed on Exhibit A. This project must be designed |
to prevent runoff from impacting ESCWD’s public water intake, thereby reducing levels
of turbidity and primary inorganic drinking water contaminants. In designing the project,
ESCWD shall consider the recommendations of the Idaho Departmént of Environn;ental
Quality (DEQ) as set forth in their letter dated September 3, 2008, Ex.hibit B. ESCWD ‘
must submit its project proposal to DEQ for review no later than August 31, 2009, and
obtain DEQ’s approval before beginning work. In additioh, ESCWD must .obtain all
required federal, state, and county permits or approvals ’necessar'y to complcte. the project,
and must submit timely applications for such permits or approvals in order to meet the
above deadlines. .
1 EPA may, in its sole discretion, extend in writing the completion deadlines in
Paragraphs 13g and 13h, provided ESCWD submits a timely written request
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demonstrating good-cause for the requested extension.
- VI. COMPLIANCE REPORTING AND RECOR]_5 KEEPING |
14, ESCWD shall perform all repotting and record keeping required under the ACO,
NPDWRs, and Act. | |

15. Monthly Reports. In addition to all other applicable federal reporting and |

record keeping requirements, ESCWD shall submit to EPA and DEQ monthly p;ogrcés reports
due on or before the 15™ of each month detajiing ESCWD's compliance with and érogress
towards completing the Injunctive Reli.cf requireménts set forth in the preceding Section V
{Injunctive Relief). Such repﬁrts shall include the information required by Paragraphs 13a-13f |
and completion percentage updates for the activities réquired by Paragraphs 13g and 13h. The
reports are-required until the Consent Decree is terminated but may, upon written notice from
EPA, be changed to quarterly submissions.

16.. Record Keeping. In addition to all other applicable federal reporting and
record kcéping requirements, ESCWD shall preserve and rgtain, and instruct its contractors and
agénts to.preserve' and retain, all non-identical copies of notices, reports, submissions, records
and documents (including those in electronic form) that relate in any manner to ESCWD’s
performance of its obligations under this Consent Decree until the Consent Decree is terminated.

ESCWD shall provide any of fhese documents to EPA upon request.

17. Final Document Disposition. In addition to all other applicable federal
rcporting and record keeping requirements, ESCWD shall notify the United States at least 30
days prior to the destruction of'any notices, reports, submissions, records or documents subject to
this Section and, upon request by the United States, clleliver any stch records or documents to
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EPA. ESCWD may assert that certain documents, records, or other information are privileged
under the attorney-client privilege or any other privilege recognized by federal law. IfESCW D
asserts such a privilege, it shall provide the foliowing: (a) the title of the document, record, or
infofmatio_n; (b) the date of the document, rccbrd, or information; (c) the name and title of the
authér of the document, record, or information; (d) the name and title of each addressee and
recipient; (¢) a description of the subject of the document, record, or information; and (f) the
privilege asserted. However, no documents, reports, or other information created or gcneratéd
pursuant to the requirements of this Consent Decree shall be withheld on fhe grounds that they
are privileged.
VII. STIPULATED PENALTIES

18. In addition to the civil penalty, ESCWD shall be liable for stipulated penalties in -
the amounts set forth below to the United States for failure to cc.)mply with the requircfncnts of
this Consent Decree, the Act, the NPDWRs, and the ACO. A violation includes, but is not
limited to, failing to perform an obligation in accordance with any approved work plan or time

schedule required by this Consent Decree. .

Violation ' B Stipulated Penalty

Late Payment of any Civil Penalty $5,000 per each 30 day period after due date
(Paragraph 11) '

Late Payment of any Stipulated Penalty | $500 per day per outstanding stipulated
(Paragraph 18) penalty from due date

Failure to Monitor as required by the Act, | $500 per day per'monitoring requirement
NPDWRs, ACO and/or Consent Decree from due date '
(Paragraphs 13a & 13b) '

Failure to Comply with Total Coliform | $500 per day per MCL exceedance
MCL (Paragraph 13c)
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Failure to Provide Public Notice as $500 per day per violatioﬁ from due date
required by the Act, NPDWRs, ACO
and/or Consent Decree (Paragraph 13d)

Failure to Report/Notify as required by $500 per day per reporting/notification
- the Act, NPDWRs, ACO and/or Consent requirement from due date
Decree. (Paragraphs 13a - 13f)

Failure to Construct and Operate $1,000 per day per action item from due date
Disinfection and Filtration Unit
(Paragraph 13g)

Failure to Hire or Contract a Certified | $500 per day from due date
Operator (Paragraph 13g) ' :

' Failure to Complete Environmental $20,600
Project (Paragraph 13h) :

Late, Inaccurate, or Incomplete Reports | $500 per day from due date until satisfactory
(Paragraph 15) ' .| report submitted to EPA

Failure to Keep Records (Paragraph 16) | $500

Final Document Disposition $500
Noncompliance (Paragraph 17)

19.  All stipulated penalties shall begin to accrue on the first day that pérformance is
delinquent or a violation of this'Coﬁsent Decree occurs, and continue to accrue through tHé final
day of cor\rection of the violation. |

20.- ~ Upon chtry of this Consent Décree, the stipulated penalty provisions set forth in
this Section VII shall be rctroaétivély enforceable with regard to any and all violations that have
occurred between lodging and entry of the Consent Decree.

21.  Siipulated penalties shall become owing upon written demand by the EPA and are
due on or before the 15" (ﬁfteenih) of the month following the moath the written demand is
reéeivcd. ESCWD shall, as directed by the Unifed States, pay stipulated penalties owing to the

United States in accordance with Section IV (Civil Penalty), Paragraph 13, above, including
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providing a copy of the payment cqncurrcntly to those persons identified in Section XI
(Notification).

22.  IfESCWD fails to pay sﬁpulated penalties according to the terms of this Consent
Decree, the United States shall be entitled to collect interest on such penalties, as pmvided forin
28 US.C. § 1961. |

23.  The United States may, in the unreviewable exercise of its discretion, reduce or -
waive stipulated péx;alties otherwise due under this Consent Decree. |

24 ES.CWD shall be liable for stipulated penalties to the United States unless
excused under Section IX (Force Majeure).

25. St-ipulat-ed penalties shall continue to accrue during any dispute resolution, with
interest on accrued penalties payable and calcuiated at the rate established by the Secretary of the
Treasury, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961, but need not be paid until the following:.

a. If the dispute is resolved by agreement or By a decision of EPA that is not

appealed to thé Court, ESCWD shall pay accrued penalties determined to be owing,

together with interest, to the United States within 30 days of the effective date of the
agreement or tl;e receipt of EPA’s decision or order;

b. If the dispute is appealed to the Court and the United States prevails ih.

whole or in p;n, ESCWD shall pay all accrued penalties determined by the Court to be

oQihg, together with interest, within 60 days of réceiving the Court’s deciston or order,

except as provided in Subparagraph c, below;

c. ifany party appeals the District Court’s decision, ESCWD shall pay_all

accrued penalties determined to be owing, together with interest, within 15 days of
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receiving the final appellate court decision.

26.  Nothing in this Section shall be construed to limit the United States’ ability'
to seek any remedy, includiné injunctive feliéf, civil and/or criminal penalties otherwise provided
" by law for any violation of this Consent Decree, the Act, NPDWRs, or ACO.

VIH. RIGHT OF ENTRY

27, | EPA and its contractors, consultants, agents and attorneys shall have the authority
unti] this Consent Decree is tenniqated to enter any property owned or operated by ESCWD at all
times for the purpose of monitoring the progress of activities required under this Consent Decree,
including but not limited to:

a.  verify any data or information submitted to the United Staies in accérdance with

the terms of this Consent Decree;

b. . obtain samples and, upon request, splits of any samples taken i)y ESCWD or its

representaﬁvc;s, contractors, or consultants;

" C. obtain documentary cvidenc¢, including photographs and similar data;

d. assess ESCWD’S compliance with this Consent Decree.

28.  Upon request, EPA shall provide ESCWD splits of any samples taken by EPA.

29.  This provision in no way limits or otherwise affects any right of entry held by
EPA pursuant to applicable federal, tribal,‘or local laws or regulations.

IX. FORCE MAJEURE

30. ESCWD shall satisfy the requirements of Section V (Injunctive Relief) except
to the extent, and for the period of time, that such performance is prevented or delayed by events
" that constitute a force majeure.
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31.  For the purpose of this Consent Decree, a force majeure is defined as any.event
arising from circumstances beyond the control of ESCWD and that cannot be overcome by
ESCWD’s diligent and timely efforts. Economic hardship, normal inclement weather, and
increased costs of perfoﬁnance. shzﬁl not be considered events beyond the reasonable control of
ESCWD for purposes of determining whether an event is a force majeure.

32. Inthe evenf of a force majeure, the time for performance of the activity delayed by
the force majc'ure shall be extended for thel time period of the delay attributable to the for.ce
majeure.. The tiﬁe for performance of a.ny activity depehdent on the delaycd activity shall be
similarly extended, except to the extent that the dependent activity can be reasonably
implemented in a-shorter time. EPA shall determine whether dependent activities will be delayed
by the force majeure and whether the time period should be extended for performance of such
activities. ESCWD shall adopt all reasonable measures to avoid or minimize any delay caused
by a force majeure. |

33.  Whenan e\‘/cnt occurs or has occurred that may delay or prevent the performance
of any obligation under this Consent Decree and which ESéWD believes is a force majeure,
ESCWD shall notify by telephone the EPA representative identified in Section XTI (Notification)
within 24 hours of ESCWD’s knowledge of such event. Telephone notification shall be followed
by written notification, made within seven (7) working days of ESCWD’s knowledge of the
event. The written notification shall fully describe: the event that may dclay or prevent
performance; reasons for the delay; the reasons the delay is beyond the reasonable control of
ESCWD; the anticipated duration of the delay; actibns tz;_ken or to be taken to prevent or
minimize the delay; a schedule for implementation of any measures to be taken to mivtigate the
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effect of the delay; and the time needed to implement any dependeqt activities.

34. ESCWD’s failure to comply with the force majéurc notice requirements provided
in Paragraph.33. above will be deemed an automatic forfeituﬁ: of its right to assert that any
prevention or delay' of performance was caused by a forée majeure.

| X. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

35.  If ESCWD disputes any determination made by EPA under this Consent Decree
related to (2) stipulat'éd penalties, (b) injunctive relief; (c) force majeure, or (d) the termination of
the Consent becrec, it shall send written notice to EPA and DOJ outlining the nature of the
disput-c and requesting informal negotiations to resolve the dispute. Such period of informal
negotiations shall not extend beyond 30 working days from the date when the notice was sent
unless the parties agree otherwise. |

| 36. - If the informal negotiations are unsuccessful, the determination of EPA shall
'control, unless ESCWD files a motion with this Court for dispute rcsoluﬁon. Any such motion
must be filed within 36 days after receipt by ESCWD of a notice in writing terminating informal
negotiations, and such motjon must be concurrently sent to DOJ and EPA in accordance with
Section X1 (Notification)' of this Consent Decree. The United States shall then have 30 days to
respond to ESCWD’s motion. '

37.  The invocation of formal dispute resolution procedures undef this Section shall
not e);tend, postpone or affect in any way any obligation of ESCWD under this Consent Decree,
unless the partiés to the dispute so agrcc or the Court so orders. Stipulated penalties with rcséect
to the disputed matter -shail continue to accrue but payment to the United States shall be stayed
pending resolution of the dispute, in accordance with Paragraph 25. In t.he event that ESCWD
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does not prevail on the disputed issue, stipulate(i penalties shall be assessed and paid as provided
in Section VII ('Stipmated Penalties). |
XI. NOTIFICATION

38.  Notifications, certifications, reports, .or other communications required pursuant to
this Consent Decree shall be deemed submitted on the date (a) poslmarked and sent by certified
mail, return receipt requested, or by regular first-class mail; (b) sent by facsmule transmission,
with confirmation of receipt; or (c) sent by overnight delivery service. Except as speciﬁed
otherwise, when written notification to or communication with a paﬁy is required by the terms of
this Consent .Decrce, it shall be addressed as follows: .

As to the United States:

Chief, Environmental Enforcement Section
Environment and Natural Resources Division
U.S. Department of Justice

Post Office Box 7611 - Ben Franklin Station
Washington, D.C. 20044-7611

Reference Case DOJ No. 90-5-1-1-08453

Paul Gormley

Trial Attorney

Environmental Enforcement Section
United States Department of Justice
PO Box 7611

Washington, D.C. 20044-7611
Telephone: (202) 514-0444
Facsimile: (202) 514-4180

Office of Water and Watersheds

U.S. EPA Region 10 - '

1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900, Mail Stop OWW-136
Seattle, Washington 98101 3140

Attn: Richard Green

Telephone: (206) 553-8504

Facsimile: (206) 553-1280
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As to ESCWD:

Carl Scheel, District Manager .

East Shoshone County Water District
606 Cedar Street

Wallace, Idaho 83873

Telephone: (208) 752-1174 .
Facsimile: (208) 556-8511

39.  All submissions made pursuant to Paragraphs 15, 17, 33 and 35 of this
Consent Decree shall be signed and affirmed by a responsible official of ESCWD using the
following certification statement:

I certify under penalty of law that I have examined and am familiar with the

information submitted in this document and all attachments and that, based on

inquiry of those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the

information, I certify that the information is true, accurate, and complete to the

best of my knowledge, information, and belief. I am aware that there are

significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of

fines and imprisonment.

XII. NON-WAIVER PROVISIONS -

40. - Entry of this Consent Decree and compliance with the requirements herein.
resolves the civil claims of the United States against ESCWD for the violations alleged in the
Complaint filed in this action through the date of lodging.

41.  Except as specifically provided herein, the United States does not waive any rights
or remedies available to it for violation by ESCWD of federal laws or regulations. This Consent
Decree shall in no way affect the United States’ .ability to bring future actions for any matters not
specifically alleged in the Complaint filed in this action, thfough the date of entry of the Consent
Decree. Nothing in this Consent Decree is intended to nor shall be construed to operate in any
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way to resolve any criminal liabiiity of ESCWD.

42.  This Conse.nt Decree in no way affects ESCWD’s responsibilities to comply
with all federal, tribal, or local laws or regﬁlatio_ns. .Nothing in this Consent Decree shall
diminish EPA’s ability to request information from ESCWD under applicable laws and -
regulations. |

43.  This Consent Decree does not limit or affect the rights of t‘hevPlaintiff or
Iﬁefendant against any third parties (parties not specifically part of this Consent'De'creé), nor does .
it limit the rights of such third parties against ESCWD except as provided by law.
| X111. MISCELLANEOUS

44.  Fees. Each party shall bear its own costs and attorney’s fees in this action

45.  Effective Date. This Cons;mt Decree shall be effective upon the date that it is
entered by the Court. As provided in Paragraph '2_0, Section VII (Stipulated Penalties), the
stipulatéd penalty provisions-of this Consent Decree shall be retroactively enforceable with
regard to any and all violations that have occurred betwéen lodging and entry of this Consent
Decree o

46. Integration and Modifications. This Consent Decree (including any attachments)

contains the entire-agreement between the parties. The reporting requirémcnts of this Consent
Decree may be modified only if such modfﬁcatjons are.rnadc in writing and approved by all the
parties. In all other rcspécts, this Consent Decree may not be enlarged, niociiﬁed, or altered
unless such modifications are made in Wﬁﬁng and apprbyed by all the parties and the Court.

47.  Termination. After ESCWD complct-es all corrective measures specified in this
Consent Decree; pays al! outstanding penalties; and has remained in compliance with all
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requircments of this Consent Decree, th(l: Act, the NPDWRSs, and the ACO through conclusion of
a S-year period after entry of this Consent Decree, then the United State; may move for
termination of this Conscﬁt Decree. In the cvent.that the United Statg_s has nof moved' to

. terminate the Consent Decree after the time period set forth abové, ESCWD may make a viiri;ten
request to the Um'fcd States to'so move. Any such request by ESCWD shall t;c aécompanied by
a certification, consistent with Paragraph 40, that ESCWD has satisfied all obligations of the
Consent Decree along with supporting documentation. Affcr receiving notice from ESCWD, the
United States shall provide ESCWD with a written determination whether it intends to terminate
the Consent Decree. If the United States does not file 2 motion to terminate the Consent Decree
within 30 aays after receipt of ESWD's written rcduest, ESCWD may file a motion with the
Court to terminate the Consent Decree. The United States reserves the right fo oi)ject to any

motion to terminate filed by ESCWD.

48.  Retention of Jurisdiction. The Court shall retain jurisdiction over this case until
the Consent Decree is terminated, for the purpose of fesolving any disputes arising under this
Consent Decree, entering orders modifying this Consent Decree, or effectuating or enforcing
compliénce with the terms of this Consent Decree. -

49."  Public Comment. ESCWD agrees and acknowledges that final approval of this
Consent Decree by the United States and entry of this Consent Deppee is subject to the
requirements of 28 C.F.R. § 50.7, which provides for notice of the lodging of this‘ Consent
Decree in the Federal Register, opportunity for public comment for at least 30 days, and
consideration of any comments prior to entry of the Consent Decree by the Court. The United
States reserves its right to withdraw consent to this Conscr.lt Decree based on comments received
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during the public notice period. ESCWD consents to entry of this Consent Decree without
further notice.
50.  Final Judgment. Upon entry by this Court, this Consent Decree shall constitute a

final judgment for purposes of Fé’deral Rules of Civil Procedure 52 and 56.

SO ORDERED THIS __DAYOF . 2009

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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For the Plaintiff United States of America:

patep: \0/ \| 2.007

patep:. A 1] re0n

THOMAS E. MOSS, IDAHO BAR NO. 1058
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

ROBERT C. GRISHAM, IDAHO BAR NO. 2623
ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
DISTRICT OF IDAHO

800 PARK BLVD,, SUITE 600

BOISE, IDAHO 83712

TELEPHONE: (208) 334-1211

FACSIMILE: (208) 334-1414

“CRUDENL. \___ —
G ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

O
.gg IRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIV.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Post Office Box 7611
Washington, D.C. 20044-7611

PAUL GORMLEY

TRIAL ATTORNEY

ENVIRONMENTAL ENFORCEMENT SECTION
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
1961 Stout Street

Denver CO 80294

Telephone: (303) 844-1379

Facsimile: (303) 844-1350
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For the Plaintiff United States of America:

paTeD: _{ Wl 10, 2009 |
. A
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NANCY J. (TEDDY) RYERSON
Regional Counsel

U.S. EPA Region 10

1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900, ORC-158
Seattle, Washington 98101-3140
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For the Defendant East Shoshone County Water District:

DATED: & —2.3 P

,.:,.‘JEROME BUNDE
“" Chairman
East Shoshone County Water District
606 Cedar Street
Wallace, ID 83873
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